立法會 Legislative Council

LC Paper No. CB(2)3067/02-03 (These minutes have been seen by the Administration)

Ref : CB2/PL/HA

Panel on Home Affairs

Minutes of meeting held on Friday, 13 June 2003 at 10:45 am in the Chamber of the Legislative Council Building

Members present	:	Hon Andrew CHENG Kar-foo (Chairman) Hon IP Kwok-him, JP (Deputy Chairman) Dr Hon David CHU Yu-lin, JP Hon Cyd HO Sau-lan Hon Albert HO Chun-yan Hon NG Leung-sing, JP Hon WONG Yung-kan Hon LAU Wong-fat, GBS, JP Hon CHOY So-yuk Hon Timothy FOK Tsun-ting, SBS, JP Hon Tommy CHEUNG Yu-yan, JP Hon Albert CHAN Wai-yip Dr Hon LO Wing-lok Hon WONG Sing-chi Hon MA Fung-kwok, JP	
Members attending	:	Hon CHAN Yuen-han, JP Hon LI Fung-ying, JP	
Members absent	:	Hon James TO Kun-sun Hon Andrew WONG Wang-fat, JP Hon Emily LAU Wai-hing, JP Dr Hon TANG Siu-tong, JP Hon Henry WU King-cheong, BBS, JP Hon Michael MAK Kwok-fung	

Public Officers	:	<u>Item V</u>		
attending		Ms Lolly CHIU, JP Deputy Secretary for Home Affairs (3)		
		Ms Janet WONG, JP Acting Director of Home Affairs		
		Mr Chris SUN, JP Assistant Director of Home Affairs (2)		
		Mr NGAI Wing-chit Principal Assistant Secretary for Home Affairs (Culture) 1		
		Item VI		
		Ms Lolly CHIU, JP Deputy Secretary for Home Affairs (3)		
		Ms CHOI Suk-kuen Deputy Director of Leisure and Cultural Services (Culture)		
		Mr Y T LAM Principal Assistant Secretary for Home Affairs (Culture) 2		
		Mr Gerard C C TSANG Acting Assistant Director of Leisure and Cultural Services (Heritage and Museums)		
Attendance by invitation	:	Item VI		
mvitation		Mr Chuck SUTYLA Managing Director, Asia Pacific LORD Cultural Resources Planning & Management Inc		
		Mr Govert MELLINK Senior Manager, Deloitte & Touche Management Solutions Ltd		
		Miss Lucia LAU Senior Consultant, Deloitte & Touche Management Solutions Ltd		

Clerk in	:	Miss Flora TAI
attendance		Chief Assistant Secretary (2)2
Staff in	:	Miss Lolita SHEK
attendance		Senior Assistant Secretary (2)7

Action

I. Confirmation of minutes [LC Paper No. CB(2)2380/02-03]

The minutes of the meeting held on 9 May 2003 were confirmed.

- **II.** Endorsement of draft report of the Panel to the Legislative Council [LC Paper No. CB(2)2355/02-03(01)]
- 2. <u>Members</u> endorsed the draft report.

III. Information papers issued since the last meeting

- 3. <u>Members</u> noted the following papers issued since the last meeting
 - (a) LC Paper No. CB(2)2049/02-03
 -- Consultation paper and pamphlets on proposed amendments to the Building Management Ordinance (Cap. 344) issued by the Home Affairs Department (HAD);
 - (b) LC Paper No. CB(2)2085/02-03(01)
 -- Submission from Ms KOO Kwan-ying presenting her views on the requirement of a management committee to provide the owners' corporation concerned with its income and expenditure accounts and balance sheets;
 - (c) LC Paper No. CB(2)2157/02-03(01)
 -- guidelines on Election-related Activities in respect of Village Representative Elections issued by the Electoral Affairs Commission;
 - (d) LC Paper No. CB(2)2230/02-03(01) -- Submission from Mr CHAN Kwanming suggesting some amendments to the Building Management Ordinance;

(e)	LC Paper Nos. CB(2)2295/02-03(01) and (02)	 letters dated 22 April and 2 May 2003 from six owners of Tung Lam Court to the President, Dr Hon YEUNG Sum and Hon CHOY So-yuk giving their comments on the Building Management Ordinance;
(f)	LC Paper Nos. CB(2)2295/02-03(03) and (04)	 response from the Administration to (e) above; and
(g)	LC Paper No. CB(2)2321/02-03(01)	 letter dated 2 June 2003 from the Home Affairs Bureau (HAB) on its view about the future management of the Exhibition Gallery at Tamar, Central.

IV. Items for discussion at the next meeting [Appendix I to LC Paper No. CB(2)2355/02-03]

4. <u>Members</u> agreed to discuss the following items at the next regular meeting scheduled for Monday, 14 July 2003 at 10:45 am -

- (a) Sports policy review future sports administrative structure; and
- (b) Regulation of Internet Computer Services Centres (ICSCs).

(*Post-meeting note:* at the request of the Administration and with the concurrence of the Chairman, the proposed research outline on monitoring mechanisms for the implementation of international human rights treaties in selected places and the Fifth East Asian Games had been added onto the agenda for the next meeting on 14 July 2003. The regulation of Amusement Games Centres had also been included under the agenda item of "regulation of ICSCs".)

V. Promotion of creative industries and local community economy [LC Paper Nos. CB(2)2355/02-03(02) and (03)]

5. At the invitation of the Chairman, <u>Deputy Secretary for Home Affairs (3)</u> (DS(HA)3) and <u>Acting Director of Home Affairs</u> (DHA(Ag)) briefed members of the salient points in the papers provided by the Administration on the promotion of creative industries [LC Paper No. CB(2)2355/02-03(02)] and on the promotion of local community economy (LCE) [LC Paper No. CB(2)2355/02-03(03)].

- 5 -

6. <u>DS(HA)3</u> informed members that HAB and the Commence, Industry and Technology Bureau (CITB) had been cooperating closely in promoting creative industries. HAB would focus promotion efforts in five domains of creative industries, namely, performing arts, music, publishing, architecture, arts, antiques and crafts while CITB on fashion, product design, digital technology, and film and entertainment industry. She said that after liaising closely with the trade and understanding the problems and difficulties they were facing, HAB had decided to concentrate its promotion efforts on nurturing creative talents, providing platforms for creative industry practitioners, improving the business environment, and mobilizing community support for creative industries. <u>DHA(Ag)</u> then highlighted the LCE initiatives implemented as well as new LCE projects that would be implemented in the coming months.

Concept of creative industries

7. <u>Ms Cyd HO</u> said that the Government should not mix up creative industries with arts education and promotion of creativity. She pointed out that the activities mentioned in the Administration's paper on creative industries, such as the Cattle Depot Art Village where business transactions were forbidden, were not creative industries because the latter should involve business for the purpose of profit-making. She considered that the Government should assess local and overseas demand for creative industries in Hong Kong and plan for the latter's development accordingly.

8. <u>Ms Cyd HO</u> said that the sale of crafts by young people to satisfy local demand could not be regarded as an industry. The Film Development Fund was an initiative for the development of creative industries but it was not mentioned in the paper. The film industries which catered for both local and overseas market could be regarded as a creative industry. However, it was not an initiative since it had already been well established. She reiterated that in planning for the development of creative industries, it was important that the Government should define clearly what such industries were, who were engaged in them, how they had joined the industries, what their difficulties were, and how the latter could be tackled.

9. <u>Ms Cyd HO</u> also pointed out that the concept of creative industries implied in the Administration's paper was different from that used by the Secretary for Home Affairs (SHA) all along. She said that SHA had once referred creative industries to industrial clusters. She then quoted the production of publicity banners for Legislative Members and District Council (DC) members as an example of potential creative industry. <u>Ms HO</u> suggested that the Government should provide a platform to facilitate interaction of businesses involved in different stages of the production process hence assisting the development of the industry.

10. In response, $\underline{DS(HA)3}$ explained that the scope of creative industries was very wide. In fact, the creative arts villages mentioned in paragraphs 8 and 9 of the Administration's paper on creative industries could be regarded as industrial clusters. She said that the Government had been actively examining the possibility of providing sites for these villages. $\underline{DS(HA)3}$ added that the paper had been cleared with SHA. She assured Ms Cyd HO that the Administration would take note of her views.

11. <u>DS(HA)3</u> further said that she agreed with Ms Cyd HO that development of creative industries should also target at overseas markets. To this end, the Hong Kong Cultural Industries Festival would be organized from August to December 2003 with a view to, among other things, showing Hong Kong's achievements in cultural industries to the local and international audience, and injecting new vigour into the economy.

12. <u>Principal Assistant Secretary for Home Affairs (Culture)1</u> (PAS(HA)C1) supplemented that the wordings in the paper on creative industries might be different from those referred to by SHA on other occasions but the concepts were the same. He assured members that the Government would actively promote the development of creative industries through nurturing creative talents, providing platforms, improving business environment and mobilizing community support for the industries.

13. In response to a further question from Ms Cyd HO on the trade with whom the Administration had liaised, <u>PAS(HA)C1</u> explained that HAB had met with key professional associations in the five domains of creative industries listed in the first paragraph of the Administration's paper on creative industries, i.e., performing arts, music, publishing, architecture, arts, antiques and crafts. He added that CITB had also contacted organizations in the domains of creative industries under its purview.

14. Sharing the views of Ms Cyd HO, <u>Ms CHOY So-yuk</u> also criticized that the activities and initiatives proposed in the Administration's paper could not be regarded as creative industries. She considered that the Government should explore those areas that were suitable for development among the Chinese, such as cartoon, fashion, local music and movie, and develop them into financially viable industries.

The role of the Government

15. <u>Mr Albert CHAN</u> said that he was very disappointed with the new initiatives of the Government in promoting creative industries and LCE highlighted in the papers provided by the Administration. He stressed that alfresco dining and flea market should not be regarded as LCE. He opined that plans for investment in creative industries and LCE based on statistics should

be made. Indicators should also be devised to assess the effectiveness of the investment plans.

16. <u>DHA(Ag)</u> responded that LCE would not only cover alfresco dining and flea market. She explained that the Government had planned to coordinate pilot projects on new concepts of LCE with the hope that they would be able to sustain and develop into viable business. She said that a case in point was the Hong Kong Computer Festival organized by Shamshuipo District Council (SSPDC) in Shamshuipo. When it was first organized in 2002, it was very successful, increasing business in the area from 30% to 2-3 times, and generating an estimate of some \$100 million turnover for booths, shops, restaurants, etc. in the area. The event had also served to promote computer-related business of the district among tourists. The second Festival held in 2003 was an even greater success with business turnover estimated at \$150 million. <u>DHA(Ag)</u> added that SSPDC was considering a long term plan for the event.

17. <u>Mr Albert CHAN</u> pointed out that since the Government was not as creative as the community, the development of creative industries and LCE should be community or market driven instead of being led by the Government. He criticized that it would be too time consuming to plan and conduct pilot projects on new concepts of creative industries. <u>Mr Albert CHAN</u> stressed that the existing mechanism was not conducive to the cultivation of creativity and urged the Government to release its control and provide room for creativity and investment from the market and the community. In this respect, Hong Kong had lagged behind Singapore which allowed more flexibility in the development of creative industries. He informed members that he had submitted a proposal to the Government several weeks ago suggesting fundamental changes to the existing mechanism so as to facilitate the development of creative industries and LCE.

18. In reply, <u>DS(HA)3</u> said that the Administration also recognized the importance in providing room for creativity for the community. Strategic partnership had been formed with organizations such as the Hong Kong Arts Development Council, the arts community and public utilities in planning and organizing a series of activities with the objective of cultivating and inspiring creativity in 2003. She quoted the Creative Train Design Competition as an example which was organized by the Radio and Television Hong Kong, Kowloon Canton Railway, and Hong Kong Arts Development Council. She said that the event was very well received by the public and the media, and the Administration would continue to cooperate with the private sector in promoting interests and good practices in the creative industry sectors.

19. <u>The Chairman</u> echoed the views of Mr Albert CHAN that the development of creative industries should be driven by the community and that the Government should allow the community more room for creativity. He

informed members that recently, a steak house had used the name of the Chief Executive as a gimmick to attract customers but its promotion campaign had been intervened by the Government. He considered that such kind of control might destroy creativity and expressed concern whether similar control would be imposed on the TV Channel on Culture proposed in paragraph 10 of the Administration's paper on creative industry.

20. <u>DS(HA)3</u> responded that the Government had always encouraged and supported artistic and creative pursuits from the community. She quoted as an example that the Arts Development Council had provided assistance ranged from one to three years to individuals in areas such as creative writing and performance, so as to cultivate creativity.

21. On the TV Channel on Culture, <u>PAS(HA)C1</u> explained that it would serve as a catalyst and platform for creative talents to showcase their products. It would have a significant role to play to enhance and develop the interests of the community in arts and culture. He agreed with the Chairman that the community should enjoy freedom of creativity and assured members that HAB would not impose undue control over the content of the programmes. <u>Mr Timothy FOK</u> requested the Administration to provide more information on the TV Channel later such as the broadcasting time and how it could be assessed.

22. As regards the comments from Mr Albert CHAN on the existing mechanism under which initiatives of creative industries were coordinated, $\underline{DHA(Ag)}$ explained that if Government resources such as land were involved, the Government would issue requests for proposal inviting interested companies and organizations to submit proposals. She stressed that this procedure, though might not be welcomed by all, would ensure equal opportunities to all parties concerned.

23. <u>Mr Albert CHAN</u> remarked that past experience revealed that the request for proposal requirement had discouraged innovative proposals for creative industries. He quoted as an example that a local superstar had submitted an investment proposal to the Government for the development of a Chinese heritage village in Hong Kong to attract tourists. He had become so frustrated by the lack of response from the Government that he had indicated that he would changed his plan and invest in Macau instead if a Government decision could not be reached in six months' time. <u>Mr Albert CHAN</u> urged the Government to relax the requirement and adopt an open and independent assessment mechanism instead. He considered that the latter would ensure equal opportunities for submission of proposals and investment while removing the unnecessary restrictions on creative industries, hence facilitating and attracting investments from the community.

24. Echoing the views of Mr Albert CHAN, <u>Mr Tommy CHEUNG</u> urged the Government to seek creative ideas from the cultural and business sectors on the development of creative industries and LCE. He added that business organizations would not welcome the tendering or request for proposal procedure. They would not be willing for the Government to publicize and invite open tenders for their profitable innovative investment ideas. Sharing similar views, <u>Mr WONG Yung-kan</u> also considered that the tendering or request for proposal procedure was not suitable for the development of creative industries.

25. To address the concerns of members on the invitation for proposal procedure, DHA(Ag) reiterated that the Government welcomed suggestions from the community on creative industries and LCE. However, if Government resources were involved, a balance had to be struck between removing restrictions and ensuring fairness and equality in the development of creative industries and LCE.

26. <u>Ms CHAN Yuen-han</u> said that the community was very concerned about the development of creative industries and LCE. The efforts made by the Government were a step forward. However, Hong Kong had lagged behind the United Kingdom and Singapore in this respect and the community had not been satisfied with the slow progress so far. <u>Ms CHAN</u> said that she agreed with Mr Albert CHAN that the bureaucratic procedure and lack of coordination between departments had deterred the development of creative industries. The existing procedure for implementing pilot projects of creative industries and LCE was too time consuming. She urged HAB to suggest to the Financial Secretary for a review on the progress and implementation mechanism, and make reference to the experience of Shanghai where a committee composing of members from the community was formed to coordinate the development of creative industries.

27. <u>Mr Tommy CHEUNG</u> opined that while planning for bazaars and flea markets, the Administration had to assess the impact on the shops in the neighbouring area which might offer similar goods. As regards the role of the Government in the development of LCE, <u>Mr CHEUNG</u> considered that initiatives should originate from the community instead of the Government. All the Government needed to do was to provide the facilitation measures as described in paragraph 3 of the Administration's paper on LCE.

28. <u>Mr Tommy CHEUNG</u> added that the Government had not provided sufficient assistance to facilitate the development of LCE. He quoted as an example that since 2001, pilot projects of alfresco dining had been planned for Sai Kung. Until late 2002, only a few such licences had been issued. Moreover, the Lands Department had charged LCE projects market rent which was not affordable to most investors. He criticized that there were too many Government departments involved in the applications for LCE projects, the lack of coordination between them and the time consuming and complicated application procedure had not been conducive to the development of LCE.

29. In response, $\underline{DHA(Ag)}$ informed members that the Administration also considered it undesirable for flea markets to compete direct with the shops in the neighbourhood. She said that the "Farm" in Victoria Park and the Hong Kong Computer Festival had not posed any threats to the shops in the area since the goods sold had 'creative input' from the youngsters running the stalls. On the licences for outside seating accommodation (OSA), $\underline{DHA(Ag)}$ clarified that good progress had been made in the processing of the applications. This could be reflected by the fact that in July 2002, only 3 licences were being considered in Sai Kung but since then, 15 licences had been issued. The pilot projects of alfresco dining were very successful and business had increased significantly.

30. <u>Mr Tommy CHEUNG</u>, however, pointed out that the processing of OSA applications had not been satisfactory at all. He said that the first batch of OSA applications was submitted in February and March 2001. Since then, more than 30 OSA applications had been submitted. It was not until 18 months later in late July and early August 2002 that the first 3 licences were issued.

31. <u>Mr Tommy CHEUNG</u> reiterated that the Government departments involved were not willing to lift the restrictions on the applications. He quoted as an example that for the OSA licences issued in Stanley, there were additional restrictions on the operating hours and the use of space, which added difficulties to the operation of the restaurants. There was also lack of coordination between the departments involved. For OSA applications in the tourist areas, even the Tourism Commission had to be consulted. The operators of alfresco dining would not be able to handle the complicated application procedure. He therefore urged the Government to provide "one-stop" licensing service to OSA applicants so as to expedite the processing of OSA applications. He also requested for information on the processing time of OSA applications.

32. <u>The Chairman</u> informed members that at the special meeting on 25 September 2002 when the same subject was discussed during a briefing by SHA, Mr Tommy CHEUNG had expressed similar concerns on the delay of the processing of OSA applications. SHA had promised to coordinate with the departments concerned to expedite the issue of licences. <u>The Chairman</u> requested the Administration to provide information on the assistance it had provided to OSA applicants in the past year.

(*Post-meeting note*: The response from Administration was issued vide LC Paper No. CB(2)2742/02-03(01) on 2 July 2003.)

33. Sharing the views of Mr Tommy CHEUNG, <u>Mr WONG Yung-kan</u> remarked that the Government had to devote more efforts to the development

of creative industries and LCE. Coordination between the Government departments concerned had to be improved. He said that the resources of Hong Kong had not been fully utilized. The Government should take the lead in exploring them. <u>Mr WONG</u> suggested that the eco-environment in the New Territories would be able to attract tourists from the Mainland. The Government had therefore taken the right move to encourage the development of tourism in the New Territories. However, the trade had little knowledge about the application for relevant licences. He urged HAD to coordinate the issue of licences so as to facilitate the development of tourism in the area.

34. <u>Mr WONG Yung-kan</u> added that supporting facilities were also important to the development of the industry. He quoted Kat O Island as an example where there was only one restaurant. He urged the Government to expedite the issue of licences to restaurants in the area so as to cater for the needs of the increasing number of tourists there. He also suggested the Government to review the traffic flow in the New Territories and introduce the necessary improvements.

35. <u>DHA(Ag)</u> replied that HAD would try to coordinate the Government departments concerned to expedite the issue of relevant licences for LCE projects. She stressed that while doing so, the necessary procedures to ensure the safety standards (e.g. fire escape, illegal structures) of the premises or works projects concerned should not be compromised. She assured members that the Administration would try its best, such as conducting meetings and site inspections with the trade, to expedite the processing of the applications for relevant licences.

36. <u>Mr WONG Yung-kan</u> urged the Administration to review and improve out-dated policies so as to speed up the promotion of creative industries and LCE. He also suggested the Administration to coordinate the efforts of the districts as well as Government departments in this respect. With better coordination, competition between districts and industries might be reduced and creative industries and LCE might complement each other in their development.

37. Echoing the views of Mr Albert CHAN and Mr Tommy CHEUNG, <u>Dr</u> <u>LO Wing-lok</u> considered that the development of LCE should not be planned and that there was too much Government involvement in LCE. He pointed out that LCE should be market sensitive businesses and the Government could do little to help with their development. He cited LCE in Sai Kung as an example. He said that there were many business opportunities along the sea shore there for the private sector to develop. The Government could facilitate the development of LCE there not by direct involvement but through improving the infrastructural facilities such as beautifying the sea shore, and improving traffic and public toilets. 38. <u>Ms CHOY So-yuk</u> said that she supported the development of LCE but considered that the Government should make long-term plans so that its policies would not waver all the time, creating difficulties for the investors as well as the enforcement authorities. She also considered the existing town planning not conducive to the development of LCE. Public housing estates after redevelopment had not offered any suitable environment for outdoor cooked food stores or tea gatherings of elders. Shops were accommodated in grand shopping malls instead of in the streets, a design which helped little in attracting shoppers. She opined that Hong Kong should make reference to the experience of Singapore where the shops were located in the streets which were once again packed with shoppers and pedestrians.

39. <u>Mr Timothy FOK</u> said that the business sector, including creative industries and LCE practitioners and investors, were eager to cooperate with the Government in the campaign to relaunch Hong Kong's economy. He urged the Government to announce the details of the campaign as soon as possible.

Nurturing of creative talents

40. <u>Mr LI Fung-ying</u> asked whether there was any coordination between Bureaux on the training of creative talents. She pointed out that the Continuing Education Fund which aimed at providing subsidies to courses directly related to the economic development of Hong Kong, was not conducive to the nurturing of creative talents. She suggested that the Administration should review the objective of the Fund so that more subsidies would be provided for training for creativity. <u>Ms LI</u> also sought clarification on how the Administration would assess the relationship between arts and business. She said that commercial organizations might not be interested in providing assistance to the pursuit of creativity.

41. To address the concerns of Ms LI Fung-ying, DS(HA)3 informed members that HAB would cooperate with the Education and Manpower Bureau (EMB) and set up a working group to consider issues related to the training of creative talents. She assured Ms LI that her views on the Continuing Education Fund would be considered by the working group. DS(HA)3 added that the relationship between arts and business would also be explored and considered by the Administration.

42. <u>Mr MA Fung-kwok</u> remarked that as the Government had just started the development of creative industries and LCE, it was therefore understandable that not very much progress had been made so far. However, he urged the Government to devote more efforts and speed up the development in certain aspects. Referring to paragraph 7 of the Administration's paper on creative industries, <u>Mr MA</u> noted that the task force set up to review the arts education in Hong Kong would only be expected to deliver its initial views in early 2004. He pointed out that even if it supported the proposal to establish a Visual Arts Academy, it would take several years to plan for and construct the Academy. He considered such work schedule too slow for the training of creative talents. Instead, he suggested that the Academy might be developed within one of the existing universities or colleges in Hong Kong. <u>Mr Timothy</u> <u>FOK</u> also sought for information on the short term plan for the enhancement of arts education.

43. In response, <u>DS(HA)3</u> advised that the Academy for Performing Arts had been providing training for artists already. It was considered that a Visual Arts Academy which would cover disciplines such as media arts, film studies, animation, design and advertising, would further enhance arts education in Hong Kong and facilitate the development of creative industries. She informed members that HAB and EMB would set up a joint task force to examine how arts education in Hong Kong could be strengthened and the establishment of the Academy would be one of the issues for consideration.

44. <u>Mr MA Fung-kwok</u> was of the view that under the present stringent financial situation, there might not be sufficient resources for the establishment of a new Academy. To develop the Academy within one of established universities or colleges in Hong Kong might be a more feasible option. It would not only help to speed up the enhancement of arts education but also ensure the quality of academic attainment of graduates and hence promise them better career prospect.

45. <u>Ms CHOY So-yuk</u> suggested that EMB might cooperate with HAB in enhancing arts education in school. She asked for information on the role of EMB in the nurturing of creative talents.

Development of creative arts village

46. Referring to paragraph 9 of the Administration's paper on creative industry, <u>Mr IP Kwok-him</u> noted that the Administration was examining resources implications and identifying other locations for development as creative arts village and would complete more concrete proposals on the way forward in three to six months time. <u>Mr IP</u> commented that the progress was too slow. He said that there was a great demand for the sites for the use of creative industries practitioners and the Administration should speed up its plans for the development of creative arts village.

47. $\underline{DS(HA)3}$ responded that if resources were not required for the renovation of the site for creative arts village, the project might be expedited. She informed members that the Administration was examining the feasibility of renovating vacated factory buildings in Shamshuipo District to provide a suitable site for creative arts village. The facilities in these buildings, such as electricity supply, would need to be improved. It was therefore necessary to assess the resources implications as well as demand from the arts and culture

communities in determining the financial viability of the project. $\underline{DS(HA)3}$ stressed that all the relevant factors had to be examined before a decision could be reached on the project.

48. <u>Mr IP Kwok-him</u> suggested that better supporting facilities such as electricity supply and computer systems should be provided in the sites for creative industries and LCE. <u>DS(HA)3</u> advised that sufficient basic infrastructural facilities were provided at the sites in Tsimshatsui and the Cultural Centre for young people to sell their creative products.

49. <u>DHA(Ag)</u> supplemented that the Eastern DC had organized the "Farm" in Victoria Park. It invited young people to display and sell their creative products through a voluntary organization. The project was very well received. The rental of the stalls was affordable to the young operators and the lease was short. There was quick turnover of products to attract customers. Youngsters also had a chance to acquire some 'business' experience. She added that there would not be competition between the "Farm" and the shops in the area since the products offered were different. <u>DHA(Ag)</u> stressed that the role of the Government in these projects was to provide facilitation measures such as relaxing Government rules and regulations, and providing basic infrastructural facilities, e.g. electricity.

50. <u>Mr NG Leung-sing</u> pointed out that as quite a lot of resources would be involved in the renovation of factory buildings to provide sites for creative arts villages, the project might be considered as a lavish investment in view of the stringent financial situation at present. He opined that it might be necessary to conduct public consultation on the proposal so that a consensus on the utilization of Government resources could be reached. <u>Mr NG</u> also suggested that the Government might form partnership with business or community organizations in financing the project.

51. <u>Ms CHOY So-yuk</u> noted that according to the arrangement set by the Government, business transaction was forbidden in the Cattle Depot Art Village in Tokwawan. She considered such policy not reasonable. The Government should enable artists to display as well as sell their creative products in creative arts village so as to attract local and overseas tourists.

52. <u>Mr MA Fung-kwok</u> opined that a capable marketing agent was very important for the success of creative arts village. He considered that the Government would not be able to perform the task well nor should the job be awarded through open tender. <u>Mr MA</u> commented that the Cattle Depot Art Village had not been operated very well. With a better marketing agent and a better implementation plan, the new creative art village to be developed in other site could be a more successful project.

Action

Adm

53. <u>The Chairman</u> requested the Administration to take into consideration the views of members in the development of creative industries and LCE and provide a written response to the issues raised at the meeting. He also requested the Administration to provide the report of the consultancy mapping study of creative industries to be commissioned by the Central Policy Unit in due course.

VI. Consultancy study on the mode of governance of Hong Kong's public museums and the Hong Kong film archive [LC Paper No. CB(2)2355/02-03(06)]

54. <u>Members</u> noted the paper provided by the Administration on the findings and recommendations of a consultancy study on the mode of governance of Hong Kong's public museums and the Hong Kong Film Archive. <u>Deputy Director of Leisure and Cultural Services (Culture)</u> (DD of LCS(C)) informed members that the consultancy study had been conducted independently by the consultants. The Government did not have a stance on the mode of governance of the museums yet and welcomed views and suggestions from members and the public.

55. <u>DD of LCS(C)</u> added that a public consultation exercise on the report would be conducted from 10 June to 30 September 2003 after which the Consultants would prepare and submit a summary of consultation to the Government for consideration. The Government would take into the account the findings and recommendations of the consultancy study, the results of the public consultation exercise, comments from the staff concerned and the public, as well as other relevant factors before formulating the future museum system.

Proposed Museums Board

Ms Cvd HO noted from paragraph 13 of the paper provided by the 56. Administration that the consultants had recommended to place all public museums under one Museums Board. She asked for more information on the membership of, and the appointments to, the Board. She pointed out that as the Chief Executive of Hong Kong was not elected by universal suffrage, the appointments he made to the advisory and statutory bodies had not been fair, objective or open. She asked whether the consultants had taken into account these special circumstances and recommended any objective criteria and procedure to ensure that the most suitable and capable individuals would be appointed to the proposed Museums Board so that the museums would function and progress properly under their governance. Ms Cyd HO added that if there were not any objective appointment criteria, she would recommend that representatives from the 18 DCs be appointed to the Board. She considered that such arrangement would ensure the representativeness of the Board members.

57. <u>Mr Chuck SUTYLA, Managing Director of Asia Pacific LORD Cultural</u> <u>Resources Planning & Management Inc</u>, responded that the consultants had recommended a community-centred museum structure in which community involvement and participation would increase. He assured members that reference had been made to the appointment procedure and criteria of similar statutory bodies in other jurisdictions. Although details of the composition of the proposed Museums Board had not been formulated, it was recommended that the Board members should represent a wide range of interests in society. They should be capable, committed and knowledgeable of the museums. They should also be able to generate funding from the business and community sector for the museums.

58. <u>Mr Chuck SUTYLA</u> added that he would recommend that training be provided to the new members so that they would be able to progress and mature. Moreover, assistance would be provided by the Government who would still be closely involved in, and provide financial support to, the operation and development of public museums. He noted the proposal from Ms Cyd HO of appointment of representatives from DCs to the Board which would ensure the representativeness of the latter.

59. <u>Ms Cyd HO</u> pointed out that there was a trend of decentralization and increase in community participation in the governance of public facilities in other jurisdictions. However, she reiterated that as the situation in Hong Kong was quite different from that in other countries, objective criteria were required for the nomination and appointment of Board members. She sought clarification on the expertise required of the Board members and the criteria for their appointment.

60. <u>Mr Chuck SUTYLA</u> explained that reference might be made to the selection criteria adopted in other jurisdictions. He informed members that he had developed a set of guidelines for the selection of members for the Canadian Museum Association. He might provide the guidelines for members' reference if they were interested. He then quoted Singapore as another example where board members were recruited and trained. They were able to mature and perform their job very well. <u>Mr SUTYLA</u> indicated that politics would likely be one but hopefully not the overriding consideration in the appointment of members to the Museums Board.

The role of DCs

61. <u>Mr WONG Yung-kan</u> suggested that the Administration should attend meetings of DCs and consult them on the report. <u>DD of LCS(C)</u> replied that a public consultation exercise would be conducted on the report and DCs would be consulted if they were interested.

62. <u>Ms Cyd HO</u> was of the view that DCs should play a more important role in the governance of public museums. She considered that more powers should be delegated to DCs after the abolition of the two Municipal Councils.

Use of the new smart identity (ID) cards to access library facilities

63. <u>Ms CHOY So-yuk</u> suggested that the new smart ID cards should be used as a means of access to public library facilities as well in future. <u>DD of LCS(C)</u> advised that the Administration had already planned to do so, and that smart ID cards could also serve as library cards for borrowing books at libraries and for using library services through the Internet such as checking borrowing records at home. In response to a further question from Ms CHOY, <u>DD of LCS(C)</u> explained that the computer software would be enhanced to facilitate full implementation of this plan.

64. <u>Ms Cyd HO</u> informed members that when the Libraries (Amendment) Regulation 2003 was discussed at the meeting of the House Committee on 11 April 2003, members had raised concerns about the length of time for which records on the use of library facilities by individual library users would be kept. In its response, the Administration had assured members that borrowing records of library users would be deleted automatically when the latter had returned their borrowed library materials to the libraries and fully settled the related overdue fines, if any. <u>Ms HO</u> expressed concern whether this arrangement would continue to be followed so as to protect the privacy of personal data.

65. To address Ms Cyd HO's concern, <u>DD of LCS(C)</u> clarified that the afore-mentioned arrangement on the keeping of borrowing records of library users would continue in future.

Public consultation

66. <u>Ms Cyd HO</u> asked when the full report of the consultancy study would be published so that details about the entry fees and other recommendations of the consultants would be available to the public. <u>DD of LCS(C)</u> informed members that the English version of the report was ready for printing while the Chinese translation was still in progress. The reports would be available for distribution in the end of June or early July 2003. The executive summary of the report had already been uploaded on the website of the Leisure and Cultural Services Department.

67. <u>Ms Cyd HO</u> opined that since the Chinese version of the report was not yet available, the consultation period should be extended by two weeks or more. <u>DD of LCS(C)</u> responded that the consultation period could be extended to mid October 2003 accordingly. <u>The Chairman</u> requested the Administration to provide copies of the report to the Legislative Council Secretariat for

circulation to members in due course.

68. <u>The Chairman</u> requested the Administration to take into consideration the suggestions and views of members in formulating the future museum system and revert to the Panel with the final recommendations after the consultation period.

VII. Any other business

69. There being no other business, the meeting ended at 12:55 pm.

Council Business Division 2 Legislative Council Secretariat 16 September 2003